
AGENDA 

COMMUNITY HEALTH SERVICES BOARD MEETING 

Cordova Library Conference Room 

December 14, 2011 – 7:00 PM 

 

CCMC’S core purpose is to deliver quality health care locally. 
President 

David Allison 
 term expires 03/12 

 

Vice-President 

Kristin Carpenter 
 term expires 08/12 

 

Secretary 

Tim Joyce 
 term expires 08/14 

 

Board Members 

Elmer (E.J.) Cheshier 
 term expires 08/13 

Nichole Hunt 
 term expires 08/12 

Jim Kacsh 
 term expires 08/12 

NVE Tribal Council - Vacant 

  

Acting CEO 

Stephen Sundby, PhD

 

I. OPENING  

A. Call to Order 

B. Roll Call – David Allison, Kristin Carpenter, EJ Cheshier, Nichole 

Hunt, Jim Kacsh, Timothy Joyce 

C. Establishment of a Quorum 

II. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS 

A. Guest Speaker 

B. Audience Comments (limited to 3 minutes per speaker). 

Speaker must give name and item on the agenda which they are 

addressing. 

III. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR  

A. HSB Meeting Minutes – 11/11/2011…………………….…....Page 1 

VI. REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE  

A. Administrator’s Report…….………………………….……….…….Page 5 

B. President’s Report 
 

C. Finance Report 

i. Balance Sheet as of 09/30/11…..……………………………………………………………..…………Page 6 

ii. YTD Income Statement as of 9/30/11……………………………………………………..………….Page 7 

iii. Three Year Comparative Income Statements (YTD as of 9/30/11)………………………Page 8 

D. City Council Report 

VII. ACTION ITEMS  

VIII. DISCUSSION ITEMS  

IX. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION (limited to 3 minutes per speaker)   

Members of the public are given the opportunity to comment on matters which are within the 

subject matter jurisdiction of the Board and are appropriate for discussion in an open session. 

X. BOARD MEMBERS COMMENTS  

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION* 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 
 

*Executive Session: Subjects that may be considered in executive session are: 1)  Matters, immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an 

adverse effect upon the finances of the public entity; 2)  Subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, provided 

that person my require a public discussion; 3)  Matters which by law, city charter, or ordinance are required to be confidential; 4)  Matters 

involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject to public disclosure; 5)  Direction to an attorney or labor negotiator 

regarding the handling of specific legal matters or labor negotiations.



 

- 1 - 

 

Minutes 

Community Health Services Board 

Cordova Library Conference Room 

November 11, 2011 – 12:00 PM 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL –  

 

David Allison called the HSB meeting to order at 12:17 pm. Board members present: 

David Allison, Kristin Carpenter, Nichole Hunt (telephonically), Tim Joyce, and Jim 

Kacsh. Absent: EJ Cheshier. A quorum was established. 

 

CCMC staff present:  Stephen Sundby, PhD (Acting CEO), and Zhiyong Li (CFO).  

 

II. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS – None 

 

III. CONFLICT OF INTEREST – None 

 

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA   

 

 M/Kacsh, S/Joyce: Move to approve the agenda. 

 

 A roll call vote was made on the motion: 5 yeas. -  0 nays.  Motion passed. 

 

V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR  

 

M/Carpenter, S/Kasch: Move to approve the consent calendar. 

 

a. Health Services Board meeting minutes from October 12, 2011 

 

A roll call vote was made on the motion: 5 yeas – 0 nays. Motion passed.   

 

VI. REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE   

 

A. Administrator’s Report 

   

Sundby reported that upon emergency approval by the HSB President, staff has ordered 

a new IT server, which will bring CCMC into compliance with 5010 requirements. CCMC 



 

- 2 - 

 

also received the new portable x-ray machine. The radiology tech currently on staff has 

used the equipment before, which is a benefit.   

 

Sundby noted that Susan Humphrey-Barnett visited on Friday, November 4th; she 

primarily reviewed CCMC’s financials, but also provided a recap of what her team found 
during their site visits. Per her request, maintenance is looking at how to merge 

different physical areas of the building. 

 

Sundby reported that items noted in CCMC’s Critical Access Hospital Plan of Correction 
were due for completion on November 4, 2011. Staff is anticipating the return of the 

surveyors for a follow-up site visit. 

 

With respect to staffing, Sundby advised that CCMC is losing two permanent day nurses. 

However, CCMC is negotiating with a locum agency for an individual currently on travel 

status who is interested in staying. 

 

Joyce noted that it might be worth approaching the Cordova Fire Department about 

obtaining a FEMA grant to purchase the x-ray machine from CCMC, but have it reside at 

the hospital unless needed in an emergency.  

 

B. President’s Report – None 

 

C. Finance Report  

 

Li reported that there was nothing unusual reflected in the financial statements. He 

reported that as of today, CCMC has $115K in the bank, with $67K in payments waiting 

to clear. In addition, there are outstanding invoices totaling $127K (which includes a 

disputed bill related to a shared Ilanka/CCMC provider, the portable x-ray and the new 

server.) Li noted that if the Board asks the City for $200K now, instead of January 2012, 

the request would be reasonable based on these expenses. 

 

Sundby added that the City Manager requested a letter for the $47K spent in March on 

lab equipment, a capital expense which becomes property owned by the City. 

 

Allison summarized the discussion: CCMC wants to remove the lab equipment from the 

line of credit and obtain the regular $200K early. Allison asked the prognosis of needing 

the $200K when it is really due in January. Li responded that there should not be a need, 

as the facility is expecting $200K from delayed Medicaid reimbursement. Kasch 



 

- 3 - 

 

responded that is would be easier to dip into the line of credit, rather than ask for the 

$200K early, as it would result in the City paying the $200K in the current fiscal year 

rather than next fiscal year as budgeted. Kasch further suggested that City Council 

would need a letter sent to the City Manager requesting that CCMC use the line of 

credit. Allison concurred and directed that staff write a letter that the Board wants the 

full amount of the line of credit. Kasch added that Council already approved the line of 

credit, so CCMC doesn’t need to wait for the request to go to Council. 
 

Li reported that the auditors asked for a variance analysis between this year and last. 

With respect to the financial statement, the revenue dollars are increasing due to the 

change in fees. Although some of the increases were significant, Blue Cross has 

accepted the changes, but recommended a 10% increase each year instead of less 

periodic increases. Sundby added that Providence compared our current rates to others 

and will likely increase those that are still low. 

 

D. City Council   

 

Kasch reported that the City Manager and the Mayor are working on a contract with 

Providence, but Council had not yet seen it. PERS and governance are the two big issues 

at this point. He further reported that Council is working on the calendar year 2012 

budget and requested confirmation that CCMC’s capital budget had been provided to 

the City. Allison confirmed that he had. 

 

VII. ACTION ITEMS   

 

 A. Computer Server 

 

Allison reported that he made an emergency decision to approve the purchase after 

discussing the issue with the Mayor and Providence. Allison gave emergency 

authorization.   

 

M/Joyce, S/Kasch: Move to approve the emergency authorization. 

 

Carpenter requested that a paper trail be provided for the record and Allison offered to 

provide an email record that documented the process. 

 

 A roll call vote was made on the motion: 5 yeas. -  0 nays. Motion passed. 

 



 

- 4 - 

 

B. Privileging of Dr. William Doyle, MD 

 

M/Joyce, S/Kasch: Move to grant unrestricted privileges for Dr. William Doyle while at 

CCMC. 

 

A roll call vote was made on the motion: 5 yeas. -  0 nays. Motion passed. 

 

C. Liaison to Sound Alternatives Advisory Board 

 

Sundby advised the Board that Aspen had been the HSB liaison to the Sound 

Alternatives Board; now there is none. Carpenter responded that previously, the HSB 

members rotated attendance, rather than having a single delegate. Allison volunteered 

to attend the next meeting as long as it was held earlier than the City Council meeting 

scheduled for the same evening. 

 

VIII. DISCUSSION ITEMS   

 

The next HSB meeting will be on December 14th. Kasch will not be in attendance, but 

everyone else is available, ensuring a quorum. 

 

IX. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION – None 

 

X. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS – None 

 

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION – None 

 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT  

 

With no other business, Allison declared the meeting adjourned at 12:47 pm. 

 

 

 

 

 

Transcribed by:  Laura Cloward 

 

 Reviewed by:  HSB Secretary, Tim Joyce 

 

  



 

- 5 - 

 

 

 

 

To:   Health Services Board 

From:  Stephen Sundby, Ph.D., CCMC Acting Administrator 

RE:   Administrator Report 

Date:  December 14, 2011 

 

 

1. We received the letter from the State of Alaska that we are back in substantial compliance with the 

Critical Access Hospital (CAH)/Life Safety Standards. 

 

2. Zhiyong Li (CFO) has submitted a letter of resignation. His last day at work will be December 21st.   

 

3. Providence visit: Susan Humphrey-Barnett (Administrator for Area Operations Administration) will 

visit on December 28th and/or 29th to discuss transition.  

 

4. The new server to update our Healthland financial software in order to bring CCMC in compliance 

with 5010 requirements has been shipped from Healthland. 

 

5. ASHNHA paid for Zhiyong Li and me to attend the Anchorage ASHNHA meetings.  

 

6. The CCMC Employee Christmas Party will be the night of December 17th at the Reluctant Fisherman. 

 

7. CCMC is one of the small rural CAH that is part of the HRSA HIT Network grant that ASHNHA has 

been granted. Planning for the use of the funds started at the ASHNHA meeting in Anchorage and is 

continuing with monthly teleconference meetings. The grant award is for $900,000 distributed to 

ASHNHA at $300,000 for a year for 3 years. 

 

8. Staffing:  

Positions we are advertising to fill: 

i. CFO – 1 

ii. Accounts Payable/Payroll Clerk – 1 

iii. Physicians – 1  

iv. Physicians Assistant/Mid-Level Practitioner – 2 

v. Nurses – 5 

vi. Laboratory Technician – 2 

vii. Licensed Occupational Therapist – 1 

 

9. Stephen Sundby and Zhiyong Li are meeting on Fridays at 9:00 AM with Angela Arnold and Penney 

Benson (NVE) to coordinate and collaborate where opportunities arise.  



 

- 6 - 

 

 

  

Cordova Community 
Medical Center 

     Balance Sheet 
     

October 31, 2011 
     

      

      

 
Current Year    Last Year 

  

 
10/31/2011 

 
10/31/2010 

 
Increase (Decrease) 

Assets 
     Cash 150,472    493,290  

 
(342,818) 

Receivables 
     Accounts Receivable 1,203,473  

 
1,733,251  

 
(529,779) 

Allowance for Uncollectible (293,029) 
 

(867,132) 
  Net Accounts Receivable 910,444  

 

866,119  

 

44,324  

      Other 75,232  
 

197,955  
 

(122,723) 
Grant Programs & City 
Transfers (54,314) 

 
(118,315) 

 
64,001  

Supplies Inventory 131,611  
 

138,055  
 

(6,444) 

Prepaid Expenses 43,173  
 

66,136  
 

(22,963) 

 
  

 
  

 
  

Other Assets 
     Major Moveable 10,684,096  

 
10,625,271  

 
58,825  

Accum Depreciation (8,450,696) 
 

(8,183,358) 
 

(267,339) 

 
  

 
  

 
  

Total Assets 3,490,017  
 

4,085,153  
 

(595,137) 

 
================= 

 
================= 

 
================= 

      

      Liabilities and Net Assets 
     

      Accounts Payable 304,207  
 

598,721  
 

(294,515) 
Accrued Payroll & Related 
Liab 513,623  

 
346,679  

 
166,945  

Other Liabilities 34,068  
 

48,769  
 

(14,701) 

 
  

 
  

 
  

Total Current Liabilities 851,898  
 

994,168  
 

(142,270) 

      Net Pension Obligation 0  
 

0  
 

0  
Obligations under Capital 
Lease 0  

 
0  

 
0  

 
  

 
  

 
  

Total Liabilities 851,898  
 

994,168  
 

(142,270) 

      Prior/Current Income/(Loss) 2,638,119  
 

3,090,985  
 

(452,866) 

 
  

 
  

 
  

Total Liabilities & Net 
Assets 3,490,017  

 
4,085,153  

 
(595,137) 

 
================= 

 
================= 

 
================= 



 

- 7 - 

 

 



 

- 8 - 

 

 



 

- 9 - 

 

 
 

 

 


